
 
Doc. #22-33 

Page 1 of 2 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
STLS BOARD MEETING 
Tuesday, April 19, 2022 - 2:00 pm 
STLS Headquarters, Painted Post, NY 14870 – GoToMeeting Platform 
Contact STLS for Meeting Login Information: (607) 962-3141 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Agenda                                                                                                                                                                         Doc. #22-33 
2.  Approval of Minutes – March 2022                                          *FOR APPROVAL                                      Doc. #22-34 
3. Treasurer’s Report –March 2022                             *FOR APPROVAL                                      Doc. #22-35 
4.  Financial Clerk’s Report – March 2022                                          *FOR APPROVAL                                      Doc. #22-36 
5. First Quarter Profit-Loss Statement                                 *FOR APPROVAL                                      Doc. #22-37 
6.  First Quarter Claims Auditor Report                                                  *FOR APPROVAL                                      Doc. #22-38 
7.  2021 End of Year Profit-Loss Statement                                            *FOR APPROVAL                        Doc. #22-39 
 
• Subject to corrections, above items may be approved without motion. 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS   
 
8. Executive Committee – Richard Ahola                      
9. Personnel & Policies Committee – Denise King                                     (Minutes) Doc. #22-40  
                                                                                                                                                                    (Policy – Finance) Doc. #22-41 
                                                                                                                                                              (Policy – Investment) Doc. #22-42 
                                                                                                        (Policy – Travel, Working Remotely & Conferences) Doc. #22-43 
                                                                                                                                          (Policy – Disaster Preparedness) Doc. #22-44 
10. Finance & Facilities Committee – Betsy Gorman                                                                  (Minutes) Doc. #22-45 
                                                                                                                                            (Library System Annual Report) Doc. #22-46 
11. Public Relations Committee – Lynnette Decker                                                                                (Minutes) Doc. #22-47 
12.  Foundation for Southern Tier Libraries – Louise Richardson                      (Minutes) Doc. #22-48 
 
 
BOARD ACTIONS 

 
13. Expenditure Approvals -Monthly Unpaid Bills Detail                       * FOR APPROVAL                                   Doc. #22-49 
 
 
Finance & Facilities Committee Recommendation:  Approve expenditures of the Unpaid Bills Detail for the most recent 
month as authorized by the Financial Clerk, Internal Auditor and Treasurer per the Authority of Board Policy.  
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________               Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Doc. #22-33 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
14. Receipt Approvals – Monthly Deposit Summary                             * FOR APPROVAL                                     Doc. #22-50 
                                                                                
 
Finance & Facilities Committee Recommendation:  Approve receipts of the Deposit Summary for the most recent month 
as authorized by the Financial Clerk per the Finance Policy. 
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________     Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
 
15.  Approve Revisions to the Chartered Public Libraries Policy         
                                              
                                                                                  *FOR APPROVAL                                  (March 2022 Board Packet) Doc. #22-25 
 

Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation:  The STLS Board of Trustees approves the revisions to the 
Chartered Public Libraries Policy as presented at the March 15, 2022 board meeting considering any agreed 
upon revisions. 
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________     Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
BOARD INFORMATION 
 

16. Old Business  
17. New Business  
18.  Library Networking 
19. President’s Report       
20. Monthly System Team & Divisional Reports                                                                                                         Doc. #22-51                                                                                         
 
                                                                                                                                        
Public Expression (15 minutes) 
Adjournment  
Next meeting: Southern Tier Library System – Tuesday, May 17, 2022 at 2 p.m.  



 

Doc. #22-34 

 

 

STLS BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, March 15, 2022 - 2:00 pm 

GoToMeeting Conference Call Platform  

MINUTES 

TRUSTEES PRESENT:                                                                                                   

Richard Ahola – 2022 Susan McGill – 2024 

Sisi Barr – 2023    Louise Richardson - 2024 

Lynnette Decker -2021  

Pat Finnerty -2022  

Betsy Gorman – 2024  

Kathy Green-2021  

David Haggstrom – 2021  

Barbara Hubbell – 2024  
Denise King – 2024  

 

Excused:  Kim Salisbury – 2022, Felicity Wright – 2023, Vacant Allegany County Seat – 

2025, Vacant Steuben County Seat – 2025,  

Staff Present – Brian Hildreth, Executive Director, Melissa Morrissey, Administrative 

Assistant 

President Richard Ahola called the meeting to order at 2:00   pm. 

 

1. AGENDA REVIEW                                       *FOR APPROVAL                 Doc.#22-18  

Approve 

 
2.  Approval of Minutes – January  2022            *FOR APPROVAL         Doc. #22-19  
Approved 
 
3. Treasurer’s Report – January 2022        *FOR APPROVAL                   Doc. #22-20 
Approved 
B Gorman noted that depreciation does not show up on the January report. The 
depreciation figures are being calculated and will show up on the February report.   
 
4. Financial Clerk’s Report – January 2022         *FOR APPROVAL        Doc. #22-21 
Approved 
B Hildreth stated the report was reviewed in full detail at the March 14 Finance and 
Facilities committee meeting and he will go over numbers at the February report review.  
 

5. Treasurer’s Report – February 2022     *FOR APPROVAL                Doc. #22-22                                                    

B Gorman stated the cash balance is up $400,000.00 from last year at this time. This 

number will decrease over the next few months with payout for construction costs. B 



 

Doc. #22-34 

 

 

Gorman added that STLS is in a good place financially based on anticipated revenues 

and expenditures.                                                                                         

 

6. Financial Clerk’s Report – February 2022         *FOR APPROVAL      Doc. #22-23 
Approved 
For income, B Hildreth highlighted line item, 4723, Cost Share. This line item shows 

how much 2022 Cost Share has been collected from member libraries, so far.  

For expenses, B Hildreth highlighted line items 5100 - Salaries, 5409 – STLS 

Telephone/Internet, and 5490- Grants. Line item 5490 includes the costs for all 

contracts of construction.  

R Ahola inquired about the cost of fuel being over $4.00/gallon and the budget. B 

Hildreth answered that he did not budget for gas prices to be where they are now. He 

stated fuel costs are normally calculated at around $2.90/gallon. Any difference will be 

accounted for at the midyear budget revision, and while the prices aren’t ideal, they are 

manageable at this time.  

 

Standing Committee Reports –  

7. Executive Committee – Richard Ahola 

R Ahola stated there was no Executive Committee Meeting but instead there was a 

Trustee Training session, and orientation for newer STLS trustees that contained a 

wealth of great information.  

 

8. Personnel & Policies Committee –   Denise King                  (Minutes) Doc.#22-24 

D King thanked all Trustees who participated it the march Trustee Training and New 

Trustee Orientation session.  

D King stated that no changes or suggestions were brought forth for the Trustee 

Selection and Election Policy. D King stated that the Committee did delete some 

unnecessary, redundant wording at the end of the policy. Specifically, the phrase “and 

get them current” was removed. This policy change will be voted on at today’s meeting.  

D King stated that the Committee reviewed articles 1-5 of the Bylaws. The Committee 

will review the remainder of the articles, and will present all for review at the May 2022 

meeting. The Board will vote on the bylaws in June and they will be approved at the 

Annual System Meeting in October.  

D King also stated that Brian Hildreth updated the Organizational Chart. B Hildreth 

added that the Organizational Chart is current with all positions approved by the Board.  

 

                                                             (Policy – Chartered Libraries Policy) Doc.#22-25 

D King stated the Chartered Libraries Policy is out for review. As for updates, D King 

thanked Louise Richardson for her suggestions and stated that Brian is making the 

suggested grammatical changes Louise brought forth.  



 

Doc. #22-34 

 

 

B Hildreth gave an overview of where STLS stands on Chartered Public Libraries. In 

2015 the policy was created to give Reading Centers time to become chartered public 

libraries. As of 2022, Arkport is now a chartered public library. Middlesex and Rushville 

are in the process of becoming chartered public libraries, leaving Greenwood and 

Hector as reading centers. B Hildreth is working with the Watkins Glen Public Library 

and Hector Reading Center to help Hector become a public library. The overall goal is 

to have the remaining reading centers become chartered public libraries by 2024.  

D King stated that all of the work Brian and the library/reading center directors are 

putting forth are the reasons this initiative is going forth. 

S Barr inquired about the benefits of becoming a charted public library. B Hildreth 

answered that there is more funding via construction aid and operating aid from the 

state. Also, charted public libraries have to adhere to the state’s minimum library 

standards, which creates transparency.  

D King noted that this policy will be up for vote at the April 2022 Board meeting. 

 

9. Finance & Facilities Committee – Betsy Gorman      
                                                                        (Provided at Meeting-Minutes) Doc.#22-26 
 
B Gorman thanked Sisi Barr for preparing the Finance and Facilities Committee’s 
meeting minutes.  
B Gorman stated the Committee reviewed the financial statement, the profit and loss 
statement, as well as, the Investment and Finance policies. The Investment and 
Finance policies will be forwarded to the Personnel and Policies Committee for further 
review. They will be presented to the board for review at the April 2022 meeting and up 
for vote at the May 2022 Board meeting.  
B Gorman asked Brian Hildreth to give an update on the construction project. B Hildreth 
stated that the project is moving along. There have been delays, due to supply chain 
issues. The project is now projected to be done by the end of June 2022 with all staff 
back in the office sometime after July 4, 2022. B Hildreth will share progress photos with 
the Board. 
 
10. Public Relations Committee – Lynnette Decker               
L Decker stated that there were 40 meeting participants on Advocacy Day which was 
March 3, 2022.  Senators and Legislators were receptive to the ideas and thoughts 
brought forth at the meeting.  
L Decker also mentioned that there is a postcard campaign underway to further 
encourage our representatives to push for increases in library funding.  
L Decker spoke about the Annual Meeting in October. The hope is the meeting will be in 
person. L Decker gave an overview of the meeting setup.  
L Decker finally noted that there is still a vacant board seat for Allegany County and 
Steuben County – Corning service area. Board members are actively looking for a 
candidate to fill the seat.  
  
11. Foundation for Southern Tier Libraries – Louise Richardson  



 

Doc. #22-34 

 

 

                                                                                       (January Minutes) Doc.#22-27 
                                                                                       (February Minutes) Doc.#22-28 

 

L Richardson stated that the Foundation is looking forward to reviewing the grant 

applications at the April 2022 meeting. The Foundation Board also discussed various 

fundraising opportunities for 2022, an in-person event, the online auction and the direct 

mail appeal. L Richardson also stated that the Foundation needs more Board members. 

 

BOARD ACTIONS 

12. Expenditure Approvals -Monthly Unpaid Bills Detail    * FOR APPROVAL       Doc. #22-29                             

Finance & Facilities Committee Recommendation:  Approve expenditures of the Unpaid Bills 
Detail for the most recent two months as authorized by the Financial Clerk, Internal Auditor and 
Treasurer per the Authority of Board Policy.  
 

Aye: __11____    Nay _________ Abstain ___________  Absent __2____ Vacant____2_____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
13.  Receipt Approvals – Monthly Deposit Summary  * FOR APPROVAL      Doc. #22-30                              
Finance & Facilities Committee Recommendation:  Approve receipts of the Deposit Summary 
for the most recent two months as authorized by the Financial Clerk per the Finance Policy. 
 

Aye: __11____    Nay _________ Abstain ___________  Absent __2____ Vacant____2_____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
14. Approve Revisions to the Trustee Selection and Election Policy         
                                                      *FOR APPROVAL   (January 2022 Board Packet) Doc. #22-8 

Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation:  The STLS Board of Trustees 

approves the revisions to the Trustee Selection and Election Policy as presented at the 

January 18, 2022 board meeting considering any agreed upon revisions prior to board 

vote. 

Aye: __11____    Nay _________ Abstain ___________  Absent __2____ Vacant____2_____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
 
15. Approve Revisions to the STLS Organizational Chart   *FOR APPROVAL    Doc. #22-31                                       
 
Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation: The STLS Board of Trustees approves the 

proposed revisions to the STLS Organizational Chart considering recent changes in STLS staff 

appointments. 

Aye: __11____    Nay _________ Abstain ___________  Absent __2____ Vacant____2_____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 



 

Doc. #22-34 

 

 

Discussion: None 

 
16. STLS Plan of Service 2022 - 2026                      *FOR APPROVAL           Doc. #22-32                              
 
Executive Director Recommendation:  Approve the STLS Plan of Service 2022 – 2026 as 
developed and presented by the STLS Strategic Planning Team in partnership with all STLS 
member library stakeholders.  
 

Move:   _____K Green___________     Second __S Barr____________ 
Aye ___11_____    Nay _________  Abstain ___________  Absent __2_____ Vacant __2___ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
 
 
17. Central Library Plan of Service 2022 - 2026           *FOR APPROVAL              Doc. #22-32                           
 
Executive Director Recommendation:  Approve the Central Library Plan of Service 2022 – 2026 
as developed and presented by the library system’s Central Library Planning Committee in 
partnership with all STLS member library stakeholders.  
 

Move:   __P Finnerty___________     Second __B Gorman____________ 
Aye ___11_____    Nay _________  Abstain ___________  Absent __2_____ Vacant __2___ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: 

L Richardson noted that on page 18 of the Plan, it is stated that it was approved by the 

Board in January 2022. The Plan of Service will be updated to change the approval date 

to today ( March 15, 2022). 

 

BOARD INFORMATION 

18. Old Business – 
None 
 
19. New Business –  
B Gorman stated that she appreciates all the work the staff put in to the Plan of Service.  
L Richardson stated that she agrees with Betsy, and that it is “thoughtful and ambitious.” 
D King thanked all involved in the Central Library collaborative process.  
 
20.  Library Networking –  
D King stated that she is going to see former board member C Emmer at the 
Poughkeepsie Public Library. She is attending an event with Author Amor Towles. 
 
21.  President’s Report –  
R Ahola thanked all involved in the Trustee Training and Orientation. He also wanted to 
recognize the staff for all of the “exceptional” planning they do.  
 
22. Monthly System Team & Divisional Reports                                       



 

Doc. #22-34 

 

 

B Hildreth thanked the Board for their comments on the Plan of Service and the Central 
Library Plan.  
B Hildreth summarized the process of how the final Plan of Service document came to 
be and noted that, with the plan is in place, it is the responsibility of STLS staff to carry it 
out and report back on the objectives.  
 
Public Expression (15 minutes) 
None 
 
Adjournment   2:39pm 
Move:    D Haggstorm             Second: L Decker 
 
Next meeting: Southern Tier Library System and GoTo Meeting, Tuesday, April 19, 
2022 at 2 p.m.  
 
"Minutes written by Melissa Morrissey and reviewed by Louise Richardson, Board 
Secretary." 



 2:45 PM

 04/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Treasurer's Report

 As 3/31/22

Mar 31, 22 Feb 28, 22 $ Change

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1200 · Cash - Operating 3,472.86 4,100.51 -627.65

1201 · Cash - Payroll 11,781.85 10,822.17 959.68

1202 · Cash - Money Market 2,038,309.50 1,900,465.29 137,844.21

Total Checking/Savings 2,053,564.21 1,915,387.97 138,176.24

Accounts Receivable

1380 · Accounts Receivable 195,178.17 605,710.07 -410,531.90

Total Accounts Receivable 195,178.17 605,710.07 -410,531.90

Total Current Assets 2,248,742.38 2,521,098.04 -272,355.66

Fixed Assets

1100 · Fixed Assets

1102 · Building 1,099,684.02 1,099,684.02 0.00

1104 · Equipment 217,660.43 217,660.43 0.00

1105 · Internet Fiber 862,208.03 862,208.03 0.00

1106 · Vehicles 125,229.86 125,229.86 0.00

1112 · Accumulated Dep Building -656,629.29 -656,629.29 0.00

1114 · Accumulated Depreciation -973,666.19 -973,666.19 0.00

Total 1100 · Fixed Assets 674,486.86 674,486.86 0.00

Total Fixed Assets 674,486.86 674,486.86 0.00

Other Assets

1382 · Prepaid expenses 86,130.22 86,130.22 0.00

Total Other Assets 86,130.22 86,130.22 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 3,009,359.46 3,281,715.12 -272,355.66

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

2601 · Accrued P/R 4,657.95 4,657.95 0.00

2604 · Deferred Grant 328,777.89 328,777.89 0.00

2605 · Retained Earnings 8,131.83 3,261.33 4,870.50

2625 · Payroll Deductions Payable -77.21 1,853.31 -1,930.52

2626 · Flex Spending Deduction Payable -325.24 2,096.50 -2,421.74

2627 · PFL Payable to Insurance 3,459.23 3,116.53 342.70

2640 · Accrued Compensated Absences 134,464.14 134,464.14 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 479,088.59 478,227.65 860.94

Total Current Liabilities 479,088.59 478,227.65 860.94

Total Liabilities 479,088.59 478,227.65 860.94

Equity

3200 · Fund Balance Unrestricted 2,092,150.76 2,092,150.76 0.00

3910 · Board Restricted Capital Reserv 350,000.00 350,000.00 0.00

3911 · Donor Restricted Capital Reserv 97,806.44 97,806.44 0.00

Net Income -9,686.33 263,530.27 -273,216.60

 Page 1 of 2

Doc. #22-35



 2:45 PM

 04/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Treasurer's Report

 As 3/31/22

Mar 31, 22 Feb 28, 22 $ Change

Total Equity 2,530,270.87 2,803,487.47 -273,216.60

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,009,359.46 3,281,715.12 -272,355.66

Official Depository: Community Bank NA

Money Market Account: .10 Rate of Return

Checking Accounts: .05 Rate of Return

 Page 2 of 2



 2:44 PM

 04/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Financial Clerk's Report

 March 2022

Mar 22 Feb 22 $ Change

Income

4719 · Interest 48.98 46.33 2.65

4723 · Member Library Cost Share 0.00 303,876.00 -303,876.00

4724 · Member Library  IT Contracts 186.12 131.55 54.57

4725 · Grants Revenue 0.00 87,893.50 -87,893.50

4732 · Reading Center Support 889.62 0.00 889.62

4735 · Non State Aid Pass Through 96,292.64 220,429.90 -124,137.26

4782 · Donations 1,193.91 20.00 1,173.91

4784 · General Reimbursements & Refund 5,772.24 300.00 5,472.24

Total Income 104,383.51 612,697.28 -508,313.77

Gross Profit 104,383.51 612,697.28 -508,313.77

Expense

5100 · Salaries

5141 · Professional Salaries 28,116.34 28,116.34 0.00

5142 · Non-Professional Salaries 41,270.32 42,341.47 -1,071.15

Total 5100 · Salaries 69,386.66 70,457.81 -1,071.15

5150 · Personnel Benefits

5153 · Social Security 5,027.83 5,103.89 -76.06

5154 · Workers Compensation 649.47 0.00 649.47

5157 · Health Insurance 23,572.54 13,688.24 9,884.30

5158 · Payroll Expense - Other 689.00 659.25 29.75

Total 5150 · Personnel Benefits 29,938.84 19,451.38 10,487.46

5204 · STLS Software & Small Equipment 24.00 0.00 24.00

5205 · Maintenance Contracts & Leases 988.76 772.53 216.23

5408 · Platform Fees & Licenses 5,506.98 208.32 5,298.66

5409 · STLS Telephone/Internet 16,277.97 17,147.44 -869.47

5417 · Library Materials 204.87 0.00 204.87

5418 · Consultant Collection 0.00 32.26 -32.26

5424 · Conference Registration 0.00 264.00 -264.00

5430 · Office Supplies 91.93 33.99 57.94

5433 · Postage 9.03 0.00 9.03

5434 · Public Relations 1,059.99 509.17 550.82

5435 · Member Library Pass through 103,038.67 13,571.70 89,466.97

5442 · Professional Fees 0.00 481.00 -481.00

5444 · Accounting Support & Audit 99.00 1,548.99 -1,449.99

5450 · Utilities 972.15 970.16 1.99

5451 · Building Maintenance & Repairs 2,352.42 767.54 1,584.88

5454 · Commercial Insurance 829.57 3,158.00 -2,328.43

5471 · Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs 1,293.44 85.77 1,207.67

5473 · Vehicle Fuel 1,514.53 2,107.50 -592.97

5474 · Vehicle Insurance 437.56 0.00 437.56

5480 · Greenwood Reading Center Exp 1,194.45 2,946.09 -1,751.64

5485 · Arkport Expense Account 1,261.33 1,364.02 -102.69

5490 · Grants 141,117.96 56,857.87 84,260.09

 Page 1 of 2

Doc. #22-36



 2:44 PM

 04/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Financial Clerk's Report

 March 2022

Mar 22 Feb 22 $ Change

Total Expense 377,600.11 192,735.54 184,864.57

Net Income -273,216.60 419,961.74 -693,178.34

 Page 2 of 2



 2:43 PM

 04/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual

 January through March 2022

Jan - Mar 22 Budget $ Over Budget

Income

4700 · Basic State Aid 0.00 844,972.00 -844,972.00

4706 · Jails and Institutions 0.00 4,215.00 -4,215.00

4709 · Local Services Support 0.00 92,916.00 -92,916.00

4710 · Supplemental Aid 0.00 127,404.00 -127,404.00

4711 · Coordinated Outreach 0.00 73,906.00 -73,906.00

4713 · State Corrections 0.00 25,884.00 -25,884.00

4719 · Interest 149.17 600.00 -450.83

4721 · E-Rate Funding 0.00 166,500.00 -166,500.00

4723 · Member Library Cost Share 303,876.00 412,779.00 -108,903.00

4724 · Member Library  IT Contracts 448.86 74,000.00 -73,551.14

4725 · Grants Revenue 89,193.50 272,000.00 -182,806.50

4781 · Retiree Health Ins  Payments 1,294.16 500.00 794.16

4782 · Donations 1,498.91 1,200.00 298.91

4784 · General Reimbursements & Refund 9,249.34 1,200.00 8,049.34

Total Income 405,709.94 2,098,076.00 -1,692,366.06

Gross Profit 405,709.94 2,098,076.00 -1,692,366.06

Expense

Total 5100 · Salaries 219,138.84 927,678.00 -708,539.16

Total 5150 · Personnel Benefits 88,085.77 407,823.00 -319,737.23

5204 · STLS Software & Small Equipment 24.00 10,000.00 -9,976.00

5205 · Maintenance Contracts & Leases 2,153.86 12,000.00 -9,846.14

5407 · Integrated Library System 0.00 75,000.00 -75,000.00

5408 · Platform Fees & Licenses 5,840.30 16,000.00 -10,159.70

5409 · STLS Telephone/Internet 49,486.59 185,000.00 -135,513.41

5417 · Library Materials 204.87 22,000.00 -21,795.13

5418 · Consultant Collection 32.26 2,400.00 -2,367.74

5419 · Electronic Materials 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00

5420 · Staff Development Travel 0.00 16,820.00 -16,820.00

5422 · Trustee Mileage 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00

5423 · Trustee Continuing Education 0.00 2,400.00 -2,400.00

5424 · Conference Registration 264.00 12,180.00 -11,916.00

5425 · Staff & Member Library Mileage 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00

5427 · Programming & Annual Conference 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00

5428 · Meeting Supplies 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00

5430 · Office Supplies 213.92 3,500.00 -3,286.08

5433 · Postage 1,009.03 2,400.00 -1,390.97

5434 · Public Relations 1,579.15 5,000.00 -3,420.85

5436 · STLS Grants to Member Libraries 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00

5442 · Professional Fees 881.00 10,000.00 -9,119.00

5443 · Legal Counsel 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00

5444 · Accounting Support & Audit 1,746.99 12,000.00 -10,253.01

5450 · Utilities 1,942.31 10,000.00 -8,057.69

5451 · Building Maintenance & Repairs 3,340.28 20,000.00 -16,659.72

 Page 1 of 2

Doc. #22-37



 2:43 PM

 04/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual

 January through March 2022

Jan - Mar 22 Budget $ Over Budget

5454 · Commercial Insurance 4,892.48 12,500.00 -7,607.52

5471 · Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs 1,457.98 3,000.00 -1,542.02

5473 · Vehicle Fuel 3,622.03 17,500.00 -13,877.97

5474 · Vehicle Insurance 914.42 5,875.00 -4,960.58

5475 · Vehicle Purchase 0.00 28,000.00 -28,000.00

5490 · Grants 212,975.83 232,000.00 -19,024.17

Total Expense 599,805.91 2,098,076.00 -1,498,270.09

Net Income -194,095.97 0.00 -194,095.97

 Page 2 of 2



Doc. #22-38



 4:28 PM

 03/29/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual

 End of Year 2021 Statement

Jan - Dec 21 Budget $ Over Budget

Income

4700 · Basic State Aid 844,972.00 844,972.00 0.00

4706 · Jails and Institutions 4,215.00 4,215.00 0.00

4709 · Local Services Support 92,916.00 92,916.00 0.00

4710 · Supplemental Aid 127,404.00 127,404.00 0.00

4711 · Coordinated Outreach 73,906.00 73,906.00 0.00

4713 · State Corrections 25,884.00 25,884.00 0.00

4714 · Bullet Aid NYS 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00

4719 · Interest 619.60 600.00 19.60

4721 · E-Rate Funding 303,365.44 397,611.00 -94,245.56

4722 · PPP Loan 195,845.00 195,845.00 0.00

4723 · Member Library Cost Share 395,382.00 395,382.00 0.00

4724 · Member Library  IT Contracts 61,313.67 60,000.00 1,313.67

4725 · Grants Revenue 136,565.68 270,000.00 -133,434.32

4733 · Member Library Processing Fees 539.00

4781 · Retiree Health Ins  Payments 397.32 450.00 -52.68

4782 · Donations 1,595.69 1,200.00 395.69

4784 · General Reimbursements & Refund 3,682.46 1,900.00 1,782.46

Total Income 2,293,602.86 2,517,285.00 -223,682.14

Gross Profit 2,293,602.86 2,517,285.00 -223,682.14

Expense

Total 5100 · Salaries 890,590.93 908,600.00 -18,009.07

Total 5150 · Personnel Benefits 407,108.39 390,000.00 17,108.39

5190 · Depreciation Expense 213,313.82

5204 · STLS Software & Small Equipment 12,490.69 15,000.00 -2,509.31

5205 · Maintenance Contracts & Leases 12,700.16 10,000.00 2,700.16

5407 · Integrated Library System 74,245.17 73,815.98 429.19

5408 · Platform Fees & Licenses 17,981.33 16,000.00 1,981.33

5409 · STLS Telephone/Internet 286,598.12 441,790.00 -155,191.88

5417 · Library Materials 16,477.68 16,300.00 177.68

5418 · Consultant Collection 1,423.58 2,400.00 -976.42

5419 · Electronic Materials 9,867.69 10,000.00 -132.31

5420 · Staff Development Travel 2,641.90 4,000.00 -1,358.10

5422 · Trustee Mileage 851.19 2,000.00 -1,148.81

5423 · Trustee Continuing Education 0.00 0.00 0.00

5424 · Conference Registration 9,275.27 8,666.00 609.27

5425 · Staff & Member Library Mileage 957.83 1,500.00 -542.17

5427 · Programming & Annual Conference 7,414.23 11,000.00 -3,585.77

5428 · Meeting Supplies 194.51 500.00 -305.49

5430 · Office Supplies 5,853.31 4,000.00 1,853.31

5433 · Postage 1,098.93 2,400.00 -1,301.07

5434 · Public Relations 3,989.03 6,500.00 -2,510.97

5436 · STLS Grants to Member Libraries 10,455.00 12,000.00 -1,545.00

5442 · Professional Fees 5,822.80 7,500.00 -1,677.20

 Page 1 of 2

Doc. #22-39



 4:28 PM

 03/29/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual

 End of Year 2021 Statement

Jan - Dec 21 Budget $ Over Budget

5443 · Legal Counsel 0.00 500.00 -500.00

5444 · Accounting Support & Audit 11,163.00 12,000.00 -837.00

5450 · Utilities 8,083.87 10,000.00 -1,916.13

5451 · Building Maintenance & Repairs 21,889.81 20,000.00 1,889.81

5454 · Commercial Insurance 12,969.31 13,500.00 -530.69

5471 · Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs 10,713.48 12,000.00 -1,286.52

5473 · Vehicle Fuel 18,131.62 17,500.00 631.62

5474 · Vehicle Insurance 5,283.13 5,875.00 -591.87

5490 · Grants 127,162.34 295,000.00 -167,837.66

Total Expense 2,206,748.12 2,330,346.98 -123,598.86

Net Income 86,854.74 186,938.02 -100,083.28

175,701.85$   *Net Income Without Depreciation Expense or Prepaid Calculations

Cash Basis Accounting

 Page 2 of 2



Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Personnel & Policies Committee  

Committee Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, April 12 2022 at 12:00 pm 

 

Meeting Location: Southern Tier Library System Headquarters 

Painted Post, New York hosted via GoToMeeting 

 

Committee Members in Attendance: Barbara Hubbell, Susan McGill, Kim Salisbury and 

Richard Ahola 

Administrative Staff: Brian M. Hildreth 

Policies 

Chartered Public Libraries Policy  

Committee members reviewed the policy. No other comments or recommendations were 

presented from other members of the board following the March 2022 meeting, where 

the policy was presented. The committee agreed the policy was ready to move out of 

committee for formal approval.  

 

Approve Proposed Revisions to the Chartered Public Libraries Policy 

Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation:  The STLS Board of Trustees approves 

the revisions to the Chartered Public Libraries Policy as presented at the March 15, 2022 

board meeting considering any agreed upon revisions. 

Motion made by B. Hubbell; seconded by S. McGill. Unanimously approved.  

Bylaws 

Committee members spent time discussing and reviewing proposed edits to the bylaws 

that were drafted since March’s committee meeting. Articles 6-8 were reviewed and 

discussed including a section on Amendments. The committee agreed to take time 

between the April and May committee meetings to conduct further review. The goal of 

the committee is to present the full document to the STLS board by May 2022 for review 

and consideration. This would leave plenty of time for the STLS Board to vote upon the 

revisions, and present to the STLS membership for their review and approval at the 2022 

annual meeting.  

Doc. #22-40



Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Disaster Preparedness Policy 

B. Hildreth discussed proposed changes to the policy as they relate to the library system’s 

Disaster and Emergency Operations Response Plan. He highlighted a new section of the 

plan that addresses how and when masking will be required of library system staff. The 

new section enables the Executive Director to work with staff on masking protocol based 

on recommendations from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention as well as NYS 

Department of Health. He also reviewed revisions to STLS Wellness Principles. Committee 

members agreed to move the policy to the full board for review at April’s board meeting.  

Finance Policy 

Committee members reviewed proposed changes as presented by the Finance and 

Facilities Committee. B. Hildreth thoroughly discussed the Member Contributions section 

of the policy because it received the most revisions. He noted the changes reflect 

recommendations from the library system’s previous external financial audits, which 

highlighted the library system’s need for policies that address how fee-based shared 

services are handled in partnership with member libraries. Committee members asked 

several questions about the impacts of the policy. B. Hildreth noted the proposed policy 

language addresses current practice, so no impacts would be realized. It is just a matter of 

aligning procedures with board-approved policy. The committee agreed to move the 

policy to the full board for review.  

Investment Policy 

B. Hildreth presented the policy to the committee. He highlighted the single revision 

recommended by the Finance and Facilities Committee. He confirmed the finance 

committee did not think further changes were needed. The Personnel and Policies 

Committee agreed. It was decided to move the policy out of committee for full board 

consideration.  

Travel, Working Remotely and Conferences Policy 

The committee reviewed the policy’s proposed changes. B. Hildreth explained most of the 

policy did not require many edits because it is current with practice. He did thoroughly 

discuss changes to the Working Remotely – Home or Other Suitable Location section.  

B. Hildreth explained it would be helpful to STLS staff to understand the perimeters for 

working remotely when everyone returns to STLS offices following the office renovation 

project. He indicated board-approved policy would clarify expectations of staff as they 



Page 3 of 3 
 

relate to working in the office and at home. Committee members agreed it was important 

to set these guidelines through policy. There were no discussed revisions to the proposed 

language. The committee agreed to move the policy to the full board for review.  

Meeting adjourned at 12:59 pm.  

Minutes respectfully submitted by: Brian M. Hildreth  



 

 

   
FINANCE POLICY 

 
 

Applies To: Southern Tier Library Board of Trustees, Employees and Volunteers  
    
References:  STLS By-Laws, Articles VI & VII Grant Funds Policy 
  Authority of the Board Policy Organizational Meeting Policy 

Investment Policy  Tuition Reimbursement Policy 
Purchasing Policy    

     
 
POLICY:  It is the policy of STLS to manage all of its assets using accepted business practices.  The Board of 
Trustees and Executive Director will work together to make certain that all financial matters of the organization 
are addressed with care, integrity, and honesty.  This policy and related procedural guidelines are intended to: 
 

Protect the liquid assets, facilities and equipment of STLS by employing judicious management and 
effective internal controls that ensure best value for STLS and that minimize the risk of fraud, waste and 
abuse. This applies to all receipts, expenditures, investments, and property; 
 
Ensure the maintenance of accurate records of STLS financial activities; 
 
Provide a framework of operating standards and behavioral expectations; and, 
 
Ensure compliance with federal, state and local legal and reporting requirements. 

 
FINANCIAL STRATEGY – To ensure there are adequate resources to maintain and update services to its member 
libraries, STLS will continually attempt to increase the number and size of its funding sources through local, 
state and federal grant writing, foundation support, active advocacy programs and revenue-enhancing projects 
while practicing prudent management of organization assets. 
 
FISCAL YEAR: The fiscal year for STLS is January 1 through December 31. 
 
ACCOUNTING METHOD - STLS will maintain its accounting records on an accrual basis conforming to generally 
accepted accounting principles and in a manner that facilitates the preparation of appropriate audited financial 
statements. For reporting purposes, the NYS annual report will be filed using an accrual basis of accounting. 
The Federal 990 Income Tax Report will be filed after depreciation is calculated and the annual audit of STLS 
records by an outside firm has been completed. 
 
BOOKS OF ORIGINAL ENTRY - STLS will maintain a Chart of Accounts and will utilize established commercial 
accounting software for managing funds. Adequate documentation will be maintained to support all general 
entries. The Business Manager and Treasurer will prepare appropriate monthly financial reports that include 
receipts, disbursements and activity on special projects. The Budget Report will include a comparison of actual 
expenditures to the budget. 
 
BUDGET - The Executive Director, together with the Finance and Facilities Committee, will prepare an annual 
operating budget to be submitted to the Board of Trustees for approval. The preliminary budget will be 
presented for review to the Finance and Facilities Committee in September, and the full board in October. The 
budget for the coming year must be approved by the Board of Trustees not later than November 30 of the 
current year.   
 

Doc. #22-41



 

 

MEMBER LIBRARY CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
ILS Cost Share Contributions: Member libraries, branches and reading centers contribute monies to STLS to 
facilitate and pay for the System’s Integrated Library System operating costs. STLS works with member libraries 
to set this cost sharing model every three years. The Executive Director facilitates the determination of cost 
shares through the Directors Advisory Council. The Directors Advisory Council makes a formal recommendation 
to the STLS Board of Trustees, who approves the final cost share amounts. In partnership with STLS members, 
STLS is charged with will developing and maintaining a cost model that provides for an equitable distribution of 
these costs to each member based on usage of the Integrated Library System. Cost share monies are recorded 
as part of STLS operating revenues.  
 
Digital Library Contributions: STLS assists member libraries and reading centers in the procurement of digital 
library content that is made available by all members to their patrons. Each member contributes to the shared 
collection based on a Digital Library Contribution model set every three years through a recommendation of 
the Directors Advisory Council to the STLS Board of Trustees. Digital Library contributions are recorded as pass 
through funds; , not STLS operating revenues.  
 
IT Contracts: The STLS’ Information Technology Division provides direct support to member libraries who enter 
into IT Service Agreements with STLS. Services under the agreement can include: procurement of equipment 
and software, data warehousing, remote server support, or other IT-related services that are outside the 
operational scope of STLS IT services. Agreements may include one-time situational support, or reoccurring 
annual support. STLS invoices member libraries for this service support[MOU1] based on services and fees 
outlined in the signed service agreement.  IT Contracts are recorded as STLS operating revenues.  
 
Billed-Entity Internet Service Agreements: STLS administers Internet connections for any member library that 
enters into a Billed-entity Internet Service agreement with the library system. This service is provided because 
STLS can leverage significant cost savings for member libraries through federal ERate funds, and ensure libraries 
offer high quality broadband access to patrons. STLS invoices member libraries reoccurring monthly fees, set by 
the library system, based on STLS’ cost to administer the internet connections, prices charged by third-party 
internet service providers, and the amount of money STLS secures through federal ERate funds.  
 
AUDITS – The Finance and Facilities Committee will select a qualified external auditor to audit accounting 
records on an annual basis. and will go out for competitive bids for auditing services at least every five (5) 
years.  Official annual audit reports will be reviewed by the Finance and Facilities Committee and presented to 
the Board of Trustees for review and approval. An internal auditor will audit disbursements made during the bi-
weekly accounts payable cycle in accordance with guidelines provided in the Authority of the Board Policy. A 
claims auditor report will be furnished by the internal auditor to the Board of Trustees quarterly.  
 
BANK RECONCILIATIONS - Bank and investment account statements will be reconciled monthly with STLS 
records for accuracy and completeness with review by the Executive Director. In the absence of the Business 
Manager, the Account Clerk will do the reconciliations on a temporary basis until the Business Manager returns 
or a new Business Manager is appointed. The Executive Director will review and sign the monthly 
reconciliations. and the Financial Clerk shall report on the completion and approval of each month’s 
reconciliation.  
 
INVESTMENTS and BANK ACCOUNTS - The Finance and Facilities Committee will make recommendations to 
the Board of Trustees regarding banking and investment opportunities for STLS in accordance with applicable 
laws and statutes. The Board of Trustees will approve the initiation and termination of all bank and investment 
accounts. 

No personal funds of individual Trustees, employees or volunteers may be intermingled or combined with any 
bank or investment account of the STLS. Similarly, Likewise no STLS funds may be intermingled or combined 



 

 

with any external accounts of Trustees, employees or volunteers. Invoices for any purchases or services 
authorized by the STLS may only be paid from properly established accounts of the STLS after appropriate 
verification, approval and audit as outlined in this policy. 

 
CASH and OPERATING CASH BALANCE – STLS’ general policy is to accept checks only in payment for services, 
materials and donations. At each Board meeting the Treasurer will provide an itemized list of all receipts since 
the last Board meeting.  STLS will strive to maintain an unrestricted operating cash balance of one-third (1/3) of 
the annual operating budget as determined by the year-end audit. The Finance and Facilities Committee shall 
track progress toward this goal as specified by the Authority of the Board Policy.  The Finance and Facilities 
Committee shall report on the status of the operating cash balance annually at the time STLS receives its total 
State Aid. 
 
CREDIT CARDS - It is the policy of STLS to provide certain Employees who make purchases are provided an 
organizational corporate credit card for the purpose of conducting STLS business. Corporate Credit card users 
and credit limit approvals are at the discretion of the Executive Director. In general, credit card accounts will be 
managed controlled by the Executive Director and/or Business Manager.  
 
Credit Card Policy Requirements:  
 

All organizational corporate credit cards are the property of STLS and authorized users shall take the 
necessary precautions to ensure the safekeeping and proper use of the card.   
 
Organizational Corporate credit cards may not be used for personal expenditures of any kind.  
 
Credit cards may not be used for cash advances.  
  
Travel expenses charged to a credit card must be accompanied by an approved Expense Report and 
appropriate receipts. 

 
Purchases charged to a credit card are subject to the provisions of the Purchasing Policy.  
 
Credit card statements will be reviewed for validity and accuracy by the Executive Director, Account 
Clerk, Internal Auditor and Treasurer Business Manager and the Executive Director prior to being paid.  
 
Personal Credit Cards may not be used to secure vendor accounts opened for STLS. In addition, 
personal credit cards may not be attached to an STLS credit account. 
 
Upon cessation of business with a vendor that has the STLS credit card on file, the vendor will be 
contacted to remove the credit card number from their files. 

 
EMPLOYEE AND TRUSTEE REIMBURSEMENT – It is the policy of STLS to not have Employees are not permitted 
to use personal funds when conducting business on behalf of STLS. Exceptions to this policy must be approved 
by the Executive Director, in which case employees will be reimbursed by submitting a completed Expense 
Reimbursement Form. claim form. Trustees will be reimbursed for all reasonable and appropriate expenses 
when traveling on STLS business, upon submittal of a completed Expense Reimbursement Form. claim form. 
 
INSURANCE - Reasonable, adequate coverage will be maintained to safeguard the assets of STLS the 
Organization and its trustees, management and employees. Such coverage will include property and liability, 
Wworker’s Ccompensation[MOU2], Director’s and Officer’s Insurance and other insurance deemed necessary by 
the Board of Trustees. 
 



 

 

PROPERTY 
 

REAL PROPERTY/REAL ESTATE – Acquisition or lease of all real property requires approval by the Board 
of Trustees. 
 
EQUIPMENT - Equipment shall be defined as items (purchased or donated) necessary to manage and 
maintain STLS facilities, projects or events.   

 
Fixed Assets shall be defined as all items valued at $5,000 or more that have an established useful life. 
Most assets will have a useful life of five years, computers and computer software, 3 years.  Such items 
will be depreciated using a Straight-Line method of depreciation. All other items are considered 
expense items.  
 
The Business Manager will maintain an inventory record of each item of capital equipment in the 
accounting system. The record will include a description of each item, date of purchase or acquisition, 
price or fair value of each item and its location. Records must be updated whenever property is 
disposed of or acquired.  

 
PURCHASES – All purchases will be made in accordance with the STLS Purchasing Policy. 
 
LEASE/BUY:  When acquiring equipment, where appropriate, a Lease vs. Buy analysis will be conducted to 
determine the best value for the organization. 

 
MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT  
 
TRUSTEES:  Trustees may apply for mileage reimbursement when attending STLS Board meetings, assigned 
Board committee meetings, and assigned duties.  They are eligible to be reimbursed for the distance traveled 
to and from their places of residence to the meeting. Reimbursement will be made only where transportation 
has not otherwise been provided by STLS. The mileage reimbursement rate will be established each year during 
the annual organizational trustee meeting. Trustees will be reimbursed by submitting a completed Mileage 
Claim Form. 
 
STAFF:  Normal travel back and forth to work is not reimbursable.  When business travel is required, employees 
will use STLS-owned vehicles when available.  In circumstances where it is necessary for staff to use their own 
vehicles for business travel, employees will be reimbursed for mileage costs incurred for trips authorized by the 
Executive Director or their Division Heads. the Business Manager.  The mileage reimbursement rate will be the 
same as provided for in the current contract between the Staff Organization of Southern Tier Library System 
and the Southern Tier Library System.  Employees will be reimbursed by submitting a completed Mileage Claim 
Form. 
 
MEMBER LIBRARIES:  At the Executive Director’s discretion, representatives from member libraries may be 
reimbursed mileage from their home libraries to attend STLS events at the established reimbursement rate 
when funds have been made available for that purpose.  
 
Every Trustee and all employees having financial or property management responsibility are to be informed 
of the appropriate policies and must comply with their requirements. 
 

 
ADOPTED by the STLS Board of Trustees on April 17, 2012. 

Revised by Board of Trustees on September 20, 2016; MM/DD/YYYY. 
 



 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

 
APPLIES TO:  STLS Board of Trustees 
                         
REFERENCES:  STLS Finance Policy 
                              STLS Authority of the Board Policy 
                              NYS General Municipal Law, Section 11 
 
It is the policy of the Southern Tier Library System to invest funds in a manner that will maximize the 
security of principal, satisfy cash flow demands, and use approved methods to provide the highest 
possible return.  All investments will conform to applicable laws and regulations of New York State. 
Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which 
persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence might exercise in the management of their own 
affairs. 
 
Primary Objectives of the System’s financial investments: 

• Preservation of Capital:   The preservation of capital is the foremost objective of the 
investment program. At no time should the safety of the System’s funds be impaired or 
jeopardized.  All investments shall be undertaken in a manner that first seeks to preserve 
capital and secondly attempts to fulfill other investment objectives. 

• Liquidity:  The System’s funds are to remain sufficiently liquid to enable the System to meet 
anticipated operating requirements. 

• Return on Investment (Yield):  The System’s investments should generate the highest available 
return without sacrificing the first two objectives. 

 
Delegation of Authority 
 
The Finance & Facilities Committee shall be responsible for the oversight of the investment program 
and the establishment of investment procedures, including adequate internal controls to provide a 
satisfactory level of accountability, consistent with this Policy.  No person may engage in an 
investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this Policy and the established 
procedures.  
 
Authorized and Suitable Investments 
In accordance with NYS General Municipal Law Section 11, the following investments are deemed to 
be suitable for inclusion in the System’s investment program.   
 

• U.S. Treasury Bills and notes for which the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government is 
pledged for the repayment of principal and interest.  Bills are short term (one year or less) 
obligations issued and sold at a discount.  Notes have fixed coupon rates with original 
maturities of between one and five years. 

• Demand deposit accounts (such as checking accounts and savings accounts) established with 
local financial institutions. 

• Certificates of Deposit (CD’S) issued by local financial institutions. 
 
Designation of Depositories 
The banks and trust companies authorized for the deposit of monies will be designated at the annual 
Organizational Meeting of the Board of Trustees. 
 

Doc. #22-42



 

 

 
Collateralizing of Deposits 
In accordance with the provisions of NYS General Municipal Law, Section 10, all deposits, including 
Certificates of Deposit and special time deposits, in excess of the amount insured under the provisions 
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act shall be secured: 
 

1. By a pledge of “eligible securities” with an aggregate “market value”, or as provided by NYS 
General Municipal Law, Section 10, equal to the aggregate amount of deposits. 
 

2. By an eligible “irrevocable letter of credit” issued by a qualified bank other than the bank with 
the deposits in favor of the government for a term not to exceed ninety days with an aggregate 
value equal to 140% of the aggregate amount of deposits and the agreed upon interest, if any.   
A qualified bank is one whose commercial paper and other unsecured short-term obligations 
are rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization or by a bank that is in compliance with applicable Federal 
minimum risk-based capital requirements. 

 
Reporting 
 
The Finance & Facilities Committee shall provide the STLS Board of Trustees with monthly financial 
investment reports which clearly provide current information such as the types of investment, 
depository institutions, principal balances, rates of return and maturities. 
 
All participants involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that 
could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to 
make impartial investment decisions. 
 
This policy shall be reviewed annually. 
 

Adopted by the STLS Board of Trustees July 20, 2010 
Revised adopted by the STLS Board of Trustees September 16, 2014; MM/DD/YYYY 



TRAVEL, WORKING REMOTELY & CONFERENCES POLICY 

 

APPLIES TO: STLS Employees 

 

REFERENCES: Finance Policy 

            Purchasing Policy 

            Staff Organization Contract 

Travel 

STLS employees travel as an essential function of their duties. The specific nature of an employee’s 

travel depends on the employee’s job title and description. All necessary and job-related travel shall be 

communicated to an employee’s direct supervisor and documented on the organizational calendar.  

Each employee who visits a member library, or attends a meeting or conference within, or outside the 

STLS service region shall drive one of two STLS vehicles. Employees shall use their own vehicle if it 

reduces drive time relative to the travel location, the employee’s home and STLS offices. An employee 

shall also use their her/his own vehicle if an STLS vehicle is not available. In such cases, the employee 

will be reimbursed for mileage based on the current IRS rate. 

Employees shall communicate among each other about the need and availability of STLS vehicles to 

minimize keep organizational travel expenses. low. Employees traveling the farthest on any given day 

have first access to STLS vehicles.  

 

Working Remotely 

Working Remotely is defined as an employee working outside of STLS offices for one or more days 

within an employee’s normal work week. Examples of working remotely include member library site 

visits, local, regional or state meetings, and on occasion, the employee’s home or another suitable 

location.  

Each employee who indicates they are working remotely on the organizational calendar shall record all 

hours worked on their time sheets, and note the hours worked were remote. Employees are responsible 

for managing their schedules to stay within the hours allotted under a regular work week. This includes 

travel, meals and time at meetings.  

Member Library Site Visits 

Employees visit member libraries frequently. Employees shall document their time away from 

STLS offices on the organizational calendar by indicating the name of the library or libraries they 

are visiting, the time frame of the visit and the STLS vehicle they are using to drive there. 

Meetings 

Employees who attend meetings within and outside the STLS’ service region shall document 

their time away from STLS offices on the organizational calendar by indicating the name of the 

library, libraries or agency they are visiting, the time frame of the visit and the STLS vehicle they 

are using to drive there.  

Doc. #22-43



 

 

Home or Another Suitable Location 

Employees may shall work from home or at another suitable location on occasion, so long as 

they can perform most of their essential duties Working Remotely within their regular work, and 

do not require accommodations that are already afforded through STLS offices. This option shall 

be exercised when it is most efficient to the job-related work of the employee. based on their 

her/his travel schedule within the regular work week.  

As a general rule, full time employees are allotted two days per week for Working Remotely, and 

part time employees are allotted one shift per week for Working Remotely. All other work days 

should take place within STLS offices, member libraries, or locations specific to library system 

operations. Employees must obtain verbal approval from their direct supervisor prior to 

exercising this option.  

Time worked away from the office shall be documented on the organizational calendar as 

Remote Working Remotely and the hours worked. The employee shall respond to phone calls 

and email as well as produce tangible work as defined by their her/his direct supervisor while 

Working Remotely.  

Conferences 

The Executive Director establishes the conference budget annually. This budget is communicated to 

division heads. Employees shall communicate their interest in attending conferences to their direct 

supervisors. Conference expenses will only be paid for by STLS if an employee receives approval from 

their her/his direct supervisor. An employee may register and make travel/lodging accommodations 

upon supervisor approval. Conference expenses are limited to: registration, travel, lodging and meals. 

The Executive Director establishes meal allowances prior to each conference.  

All conference expenditures shall be realized through a purchase order or STLS issued credit card. 

Employees will not be reimbursed for conference expenditures if they use their own credit or debit card. 

Employees shall seek reasonable pricing for all conference expenses.  

STLS vehicles are to be considered the primary means for conference transportation unless air travel is 

required. Use of a personal vehicle requires approval from the Executive Director. Employees shall 

coordinate the sharing of vehicles if more than one employee is attending the same conference.  

Employees may also attend conferences which are job-related at their own expense if the STLS budget 

does not support participation. Conference attendance will be considered as a regularly scheduled 

working day, as approved by the Executive Director. Employees should record travel, meals and time 

spent at conference-related events on their time sheets. 

 

Adopted by the STLS Board of Trustees on 05/15/ 2018.  

Revised by the STLS Board of Trustees on MM/DD/YYYY.  

   



 

 

 

STLS POLICY MANUAL 
DISASTER PREPAREDNESS POLICY 

 
APPLIES TO:  STLS Board of Trustees 
                        STLS Staff 
                        STLS Insurers 
 
REFERENCES:   Authority of the Board Policy 

Facilities Maintenance Policy 
Steuben County Office of Emergency Services 

                           Federal Emergency Management Agency 
                           Records Retention & Disposition Policy 
 
Natural and man-made disasters, resulting from events such as fires, floods, storms and outbreak 
illnesses cannot always be prevented; however the severity of their effects can be minimized by 
preparing ahead of time.  The safety and well-being of STLS staff, trustees, volunteers and visitors 
within the STLS building are of paramount importance should disaster occur. Also concerning is the 
preservation of library system critical resources. 
 
To ensure practical safety of staff, trustees and visitors in the event of any disaster, the Southern Tier 
Library System will maintain up-to-date practices.  Practices will include but not be limited to such 
items as: 
  

1. Implementation of a Disaster and Emergency Operations Response Plan 
2. Periodic training of staff to facilitate staff, trustee, volunteer and visitor safety 

a. Inclement weather closings 
b. Evacuations due to fire, flood, and storms and outbreak illnesses  
c. Severe weather alerts (tornado & storms) 
d. Basic CPR, AED & first aid  

3. Posted information concerning layout of building, location of fire extinguishers, fire exits 
and alternate escape routes; emergency contact numbers and emergency shelters 

4. Communication with Steuben County Office of Emergency Services 
5. Review of Federal Emergency Management Agency guidance 

 
Practices will also protect all legal and essential documents, such as the original STLS charter, current 
payroll and personnel records, and any necessary records highlighted in the STLS Records Retention 
and Disposition Policy.  Critical documents are housed in a fireproof, lockable cabinet and backups of 
digital information are maintained. 
 
STLS staff and trustees will be provided with a copy of this policy and the Emergency Procedures & 
Disaster Recovery Plan. The policy and plan will be reviewed and updated as necessary by the 
Executive Director and STLS Board of Trustees.  

 
Adopted by the STLS Board of Trustees on September 17, 2013. 

Revised by the Board of Trustees on October 17,2019; May 19, 2020; November 16, 2021 

Doc. #22-44



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Disaster and Emergency Operations Response Plan 

A Working Addendum to the Disaster Preparedness Policy 

 

 

 

Health-Related Outbreaks (Epidemic or Pandemic) 

Overview 

STLS will respond to the needs of the organization and its member libraries in the event of a health-

related outbreak that adversely impacts system-wide library services. In such cases, STLS will make 

decisions, and provide guidance to member libraries based on directives from federal, state and local 

governments.  

 

Guidance Documents  

In order to respond to an outbreak of large-scale proportions, STLS will develop, maintain and issue 

outbreak-related Guidance Documents that aid in organizational decisions specific to staff, trustees 

and operations, and support member libraries with local decisions and actions. Guidance Documents 

along with the implementation of this plan are the responsibility of the Executive Director in 

consultation with trustees and through delegation to key staff.  

Guidance Documents shall include:  

▪ Overview of services to member libraries based on governmental directives 

▪ List of services to be maintained, altered, paused or discontinued during an outbreak 

▪ General time frame for how long services will be revised or maintained 

▪ Means of communication with members during an outbreak  

▪ Evolving interpretations from federal, state and local agencies for how STLS and members 

shall respond to an outbreak  

▪ List of options for how STLS and members will resume normal operations 

Guidance Documents will be updated regularly during an outbreak and shared with trustees, staff and 

member libraries. Primary means for sharing out information will include library system email 

distribution lists as well as documentation on library system’s website. The library system will also 

host “as needed” meetings to keep library system staff and member libraries informed. 

Working Remotely & Paid Outbreak Leave  



 

 

When the library system closes due to a declared state of emergency, and all or some staff are 

instructed not to come in to work, STLS will retain and pay all staff positions based on the current 

board-approved Organizational Chart to assist members through a health-related outbreak.  

To be eligible for compensation during outbreak leave, staff must be ready, willing and able to work 

remotely on projects identified by the Executive Director and Division Heads during their regularly 

scheduled working hours, and must complete such duties as assigned.  When performing tasks 

remotely, staff should note the time worked through the usual process for logging hours.  

Staff should reference STLS’ Travel, Working Remotely & Conference Policy for general guidance on 

remote work.  

Full time staff shall be paid at their regular rate of pay.  Part time staff shall be paid for their regularly 

scheduled shifts; part-time staff with variable schedules, the weekly amount will be based on the 

number of hours allotted to their job title/description within their initial job offer.  

Working Remotely & Paid Outbreak Leave will begin and end based on the timeline set by the 

Executive Director in consultation with the library system Board of Trustees.  

Capacity Limits and Social Distancing 

In addition to allowing for Working Remotely and Paid Outbreak Leave, the library system will 

establish capacity limits and social distancing requirements. Examples of limits include:  

▪ Assessing and limiting the number of staff members, guests and vendors allowed in the 

building or specific rooms of the building based on square footage space and 

recommendations from federal, state or local health agencies.  

▪ Requiring staff members, guests and vendors to maintain a specific distance from other 

individuals based on recommendations from federal, state or local health agencies.  

▪ Establishing and placing ample signage throughout the library system building to inform 

individuals of limits and distances. 

Masking 

 

Masking is a proven and highly effective form of limiting the spread of airborne viruses. The library 

system will institute masking policies based on recommendations from the Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention as well as New York State Department of Health. These recommendations will 

influence masking practices inside STLS’ building, vehicles and visits to member libraries. The 

Executive Director will work with Division Heads to determine necessary masking practices. Current 

practices will be communicated to the Board of Trustees, staff, guests and vendors.  

 

Personal Protective Equipment and Building Cleaning 

The library system will obtain and provide staff, guests and vendors with any necessary personal 

protective equipment in order to maintain safe office operations. Equipment and supplies may 

include:  



 

 

▪ Face masks or shields 

▪ Latex gloves 

▪ Hand sanitizer 

▪ Disinfectant wipes or sprays 

▪ Soaps 

▪ Thermometers  

▪ Basic first aid kits 

 

The building will also experience regular or heightened cleaning to offset exposures or possible risks. 

This includes library system vehicles. HVAC filters will maintain a MERV-13 rating or higher.  

Wellness Principles 

The following Wellness Principles will be established to minimize risk of illness or exposure when 

staff, guests or vendors are in the building:  

▪ Stay home when sick 

▪ Check for symptoms before work 

▪ Wash or sanitize hands often 

▪ Sanitize shared objects as needed before and after use  

▪ Wear masks in shared spaces when required 

▪ Maintain Ensure six feet of distance at all times 

▪ Meet in person only when needed 

▪ Report exposure to system director 

 

Cases, Exposures, Screening and Contact Tracing 

Confidentiality of cases, exposures and activities surrounding contact tracing will be maintained at 

the highest levels possible. The library system will take the following steps if it learns a staff member, 

guest or vendor contracts a virus (case) or is exposed (contact of a case).  

1. Ensure the case is seeking and/or receiving necessary medical attention. 

2. Identify when and where the case may have contracted illness.  

3. Determine the names of individuals who the case may have exposed through work activities.  

4. Assess the level of contact (close or proximate) the case had with individuals exposed.  

5. Notify the exposed individuals and inform them if they are a close or proximate contact. 

(Contacts of a contact will not be notified).  

6. Notify the local health department as well as any member libraries or agencies if the case was 

onsite and posed a possible exposure.  

7. Staff, guests and vendors who were a case or exposure may return to the library system 

following 10-day quarantine and documented proof of a negative virus test.  

8. If a vaccine is available and a vaccinated person is exposed, they must quarantine until they 

get tested 3 days following exposure and produce a documented negative virus test.  



 

 

9. Vaccinated persons who are a case must quarantine for 10-days and produce a documented 

negative virus test before returning to work.  

10. Employees must work with the Executive Director to complete a Request to Work Remotely & 

Self-Quarantine Form if they are a case, exposed or need to work remotely for any virus-

related reason. This form will document how the library system dealt with each individual 

case, contact and exposure. Forms will be retained for 60-days for contact tracing purposes, 

and shredded following this time period.  

 

The library system will ask all library system staff, guests and vendors to complete a Wellness Form 

when entering the building. Individuals must certify they feel well and don’t pose a health risk to 

other individuals in order to start work or enter the building. The library system will retain Wellness 

Forms for 60-days to assist with contact tracing, and shred following this time period. 

Time sheets will be used to contact trace staff who work in the building. A log sheet will also be used 

for guests and vendors at the library system’s two public entrances. Log sheets will be retained for 

60-days to assist with contract tracing, and shredded following this time period.  

Vaccines 

Library system staff are encouraged to receive a vaccine when it becomes available for an epidemic 

or pandemic-related virus. The library system will ask all current employees and new hires to present 

proof of vaccine for the sole purpose of assessing total overall vaccine-status of library system 

employees, which will enable library system administration to make decisions about Working 

Remotely, Masking Requirements, Capacity Limits, Social Distancing, Wellness Principles and overall 

virus-related operations. Documentation of a staff member’s vaccine status will be filed in the 

employee’s *personnel medical file, which may be inspected by the staff member upon request. Staff 

who cannot show documented proof of vaccine will be determined unvaccinated, and may be 

required to test as needed to maintain the health and safety of all library system staff.  

*Personnel files and personnel medical files may only be accessed by the Executive Director, Business 

Manager, Account Clerk and the individual staff member.  

 
Adopted by the STLS Board of Trustees on May 19, 2020. Revised November 16, 2021 

 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

        Finance & Facilities Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

April 11, 2022 at 3:15 pm 

Hosted via GoToMeeting 

Present: Sisi Barr, Pat Finnerty, Louise Richardson and Brian Hildreth                               

Excused: Betsy Gorman 

Meeting was called to order at 3:19 pm. 

Review of Financial Statements- Brian reviewed the March financial statements with the committee.   

March’s Treasurer Report- Brian stated the balance is a little more than 2 million as compared to last 

year at 1.7 million.  The reserve balance will be used for the office renovation project.  STLS is roughly 

45% into total project costs.     

March’s Financial Clerk’s Report – STLS received about $96,000 non-state aide pass through.  Line item 

5490 - Grants reflects amounts paid out for construction. Fuel costs for Feb reflect additional deliveries 

of Covid test to member libraries and March fuel cost reflect increased costs for fuel. We typically spend 

$1,100 per month on fuel costs.  

March’s Profit - Loss Vs Actual Statement-  State budget has passed.  We will see a 5 percent increase to 

Library Operating Aid. Library Construction Aid is $34 million which is flat funding from 2021.   

2021 Profit/Loss Cash and Depreciation Statement – shared with committee members.  This statement is 

a cash basis accounting showing we have a carryover of about $175,000 in cash.  These funds have been 

earmarked for the office renovation project to serve as Construction Aid matching funds.   

First Quarter Claims Auditor Report – there were a few items with sales tax charged and purchases with 

no receipts.  Most issues have now been resolved.  

Deposit Summary and Expenditures Report - are included in the Board packet. 

Policy Review   - both policies will be presented to the April Board meeting and final review at the May 

meeting.                    

Investment Policy- same as sent out to committee members last month. 

Finance Policy- some significant changes per recommendations from our external auditors to include 

more detailed explanations of shared services and fees.   

Doc. #22-45



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

2021 External Audit - date changed to the Week of June 6, 2022 due to office renovation project.   This 

will change the finance committee’s meeting with auditor to the Fall.   

 

Facilities Update – STLS Office Renovation Project. The IT and ILS offices will be done by the end of April.  

Restrooms will also be complete by this deadline. The project is moving along well, and contractors along 

with architects have been really good to work with.  

 

Pat moved to adjourn the meeting at 4:14 pm, Louise seconded and all approved.                                  

 

Respectfully submitted: Sisi Barr for Betsy Gorman, Treasurer 

 

Next Meeting is Monday, May 9th at 3:15pm. 



Doc. #22-46

















































































Public Relations Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, March 15, 2022 – 1:30 pm 

 

 

Meeting Location: Southern Tier Library System Headquarters via GoToMeeting 

Painted Post, New York  

Committee Members in Attendance: Lynnette Decker (chair), Kathy Green and David Haggstrom  

 

Staff Present: Brian Hildreth 

Meeting called to order at 1:31 pm 

2022 State Funding Advocacy Efforts 

B. Hildreth reported on recent library system efforts during Advocacy Day. He noted roughly 40 advocates from 

the STLS service region participated. Legislators were receptive to talking points, and indicated they were equally 

disappointed with the governor’s proposals for libraries. The Senate and Assembly would have one house budgets 

in place in the coming days. Initial reports out of Albany show both bodies restoring Construction Aid to $34 

million, and increasing Library Aid to either $102 million or $124 million. The budget is supposed to be finalized 

the last week of March, so we will know better where libraries stand then. B. Hildreth said postcards from across 

the library system were being sent to legislators the week before the budget deadline.  

 

Construction Aid Update 

Committee members discussed Construction Aid Guidelines for 2022. B. Hildreth said it would be better to finalize 

guidelines at April’s committee meeting because STLS should know by then the amount allocated to STLS and its 

member libraries. Prioritizing ADA accessibility, energy efficiencies and phased building projects were within last 

year’s scope. A $34 million Construction Aid Program in 2022/2023 would allow these priorities to stand. 

Committee members will review the guidelines considering allocated amounts in April 2022.  

Annual Meeting Discussion 

There was discussion about how the annual meeting will take place in 2022. Committee members agreed an in-

person event would be ideal if the current state of the pandemic would allow it to happen. Currently there are no 

restrictions on gatherings and masking is not required in public spaces. B. Hildreth said he would look into a 

possible event location and date before April’s meeting. Plans could be developed following a determination on 

these two pieces of information.   

Vacant STLS Board of Trustee Seats 

B. Hildreth reported the 2021 – 2025 Allegany County seat along with the 2021 – 2025 Steuben County – SSCL 

seat are still vacant. He informed the committee an announcement was made at March’s Allegany County 

Director’s Association meeting. And, a trustee from Southeast Steuben County Library has said there might be a 

potential candidate for the board. The library system is still waiting to hear from member libraries about possible 

candidates.  

Meeting adjourned at 1:58 pm 

Respectfully submitted: Brian M. Hildreth, STLS Executive Director 

Doc. #22-47



Foundation for Southern Tier Libraries 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
March 10, 2022 
via Go to Meeting 
 
MEETING MINUTES 
 
Present: Sherry Collins, President; Ristina Wigg, Vice President; Paul Webster, Treasurer; Louise Richardson, 
Secretary; Peter Gamba; Denise King; Dale Wexell; Phil Uncapher; Brian Hildreth, Southern Tier Library System 
Executive Director 
 
Excused: Bonnie Weber 
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:05 pm. 
 
The minutes of the February 10, 2022 meeting were approved, with the clarification that Peter Gamba was 
absent. 
 
The financial reports were reviewed and approved. It was noted that we now have the largest cash balance 
ever. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Fundraising 
It was noted that the online auction netted about $2,500 in business sponsorships which came from 
institutions and non-retail businesses. Retail businesses are more inclined to donate goods to the auction. 
 
Dale noted that, in order to have a successful auction, each board member will need to make personal asks for 
auction items. 
 
We have a variety of options in terms of event fundraising in 2022: 

• An in-person event like the ones held before the pandemic 

• An online auction like the one conducted in 2021. 

• An online auction that extends to a silent auction at an in-person event. 
 
It was decided that we will stage another online auction this year. The determination about an in-person event 
will be made in April. 
 
Louise noted that she would forward some silent auction catalogs from past Komen Twin Tiers Pink Tie Affair 
events she worked on to members which may spark ideas about items for our auction. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Grants Program 
Sherry noted that we have received one grant application so far, from Richburg Colonial Library. 
 
Brian noted that the applications will be compiled and sent to board members prior to the April meeting, 
when they will be reviewed and recipients will be determined. 
 

Doc. #22-48



Foundation for Southern Tier Libraries March 10, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes:  2 

Advertising 
Sherry shared an advertising opportunity, but it was decided that the timing of the publication did not work 
for our purposes. 
 
Annual Meeting 
The annual meeting is scheduled for May. The STLS office renovations will not be completed by then, so this is 
not an option for a venue. We could once again have the meeting virtually or could have a member library 
host it. 
 
STLS Open House 
STLS will have an open house once the renovation project is completed, probably in mid-August. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:18 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Louise Richardson 
Secretary 



Doc. #22-49















Doc. #22-50







Page 1 of 8 
 
 

Monthly System Staff & Division Reports  

2021 Library System Accomplishments by Staff Members  

April 19, 2022 

 
 
 

Office of the Executive Director by Brian Hildreth, Executive Director  
Division of Library Sustainability 

COVID-19 Guidance and Recommendations 

2021 marked our second year helping STLS and its member libraries deal with the COVID-19 pandemic. We 
learned much in 2020 in terms of how to manage the virus, and keep people healthy to the best of our abilities 
within public settings. STLS played a central role in informing members about how to deal with things such as 
positive cases, exposures, vaccine requirements, contact tracing, masking, social distancing, and general 
practices for bringing community members together in safe ways. We developed more than a two dozen 
guidance documents (2-per month) to assist with public library services.  

2022 – 2026 Planning 

One highlight of this past year was engaging with member library stakeholders (librarians, directors, trustees, 
volunteers and friends) to develop STLS’ Plan of Service, and other relevant documents that form the foundation 
of library system support. The Central Library Planning Committee did a fantastic job providing feedback for how 
STLS works with our central library, CCLD to provide support services using state funding. This process led to 
improved spending on shared collections (print and digital) as well as enhanced learning opportunities for 
member libraries. Additionally, our online focus groups and one-to-one interviews involved nearly 100 
stakeholders to collect data sets that provided important insight to STLS, which in return established service 
priorities for the next 5-years. These meetings, and the data collected, were vital to the process. Ultimately, we 
developed our STLS Plan of Service, Central Library Plan of Service and Direct Access Plan for 2022 – 2026.  

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Social Justice 

STLS’ Declaration Promoting Racial and Social Justice along with its Social Justice Activities Plan were two key 
documents created in 2021 to support STLS’ longstanding commitment to the Library Bill of Rights and Core 
Values of Librarianship. The Social Justice Activities Plan has been particularly important because it has provided 
actionable items for all STLS staff to work on, in partnership with the STLS Board of Trustees and member 
libraries. Several items from this action plan were addressed in 2021, and will continue to be addressed in 2022 
and beyond. In addition to this planning process, STLS hosted its first online two-day conference called, Gather 
and Grow – Cultivating Inclusive Communities. This event served as an explicit jumping-off point for STLS to 
build upon practices and services that address matters of EDISJ. Roughly 70 member stakeholders participated 
in the two-day event. 

STLS Office Renovation Project 

This project found light following 18-months of planning in partnership between the STLS Board of Trustees and 
library system staff. We were able to secure the necessary funds to begin and complete the project, finalize 
designs concepts that aligned with staff needs and wants, put the project out for bid, finalize contracts with 
successful contractors and begin work before the end of 2021. It is exciting to see the results of this planning 

Doc. #22-51



Page 2 of 8 
 
 

process take place in 2022, and we look forward to sharing the resources of our new building with the 
membership in the fall of 2022.   

Public Computing Infrastructure for Member Libraries 

STLS secured more than $635,000 in federal funds that is being used for enhancing and expanding public 
computing infrastructure at member libraries and STLS. This project allowed STLS and its members to purchase 
any type of public computing equipment needed by a member library that offered viable infrastructure for 
fostering digital equity to all community members. Equipment purchases included: public computers, loanable 
laptops, external WiFi Access points, loanable WiFi hotspots, scanners, printers, copy machines, interactive 
learning boards, virtual meeting software, and any other equipment, software or supply that fell within the 
scope of these funding sources.   

Sustainability 

2021 marked the 8th consecutive year that STLS assisted member libraries in obtaining sustainable funding 
through 259 funding referendums. STLS specifically assisted the reading centers of Middlesex and Rushville 
obtain funding to become chartered public libraries through the New York State Education Department. This 
process will offer a great return on investment for community members of the Marcus-Whitman School District 
because it will ensure long-term public library services, and position both libraries to receive aid from New York 
State for operating and capital costs.  

Staff Association and STLS Board Negotiations 

This year’s negotiations between the STLS Staff Association and STLS Board of Trustees was representative of 
how much both these institutions have evolved by working together to ensure a healthy relationship that allows 
STLS to carry out its mission, while prioritizing the needs of the people who make it happen. The result was a 
meaningful 2021 – 2024 Staff Association Contract, which included the establishment of $15 per hour minimum 
wage.  

Youth Services & InterLibrary Loan 

by Lorie Brown, Professional Development Manager 

Division of Professional Development 

We have been charged to report on the projects for which we were individually responsible. I think I’m proudest 

of the fact that there are very few of projects for which I was solely responsible. I am very proud of working as a 

part of a team with my colleagues. I am proud of the contributions that I added to various projects. I ‘own’ a part 

of those projects, but not the entire project. Alvin Toffler said, “You've got to think about big things while you're 

doing small things, so that all the small things go in the right direction.” On the STLS Team, I am working on the 

small things, channeling them in the correct direction to make the big things happen.  

I am very proud of the contributions that I made to assist the former, Arkport Village Book Center to become the 

Arkport Public Library. I played a key role in assisting the library staff and trustees prepare for their new journey 

as a library. I, along with colleague Lyndsie Guy, weeded their collection which, in turn, allowed the ILS Team to 

add their collection to the Integrated Library Catalog for patrons across the entire region to use. On their path to 

becoming a fully chartered library, there was a snag in procuring their Tax Exempt status. While others 

channeled their efforts to getting the tax exempt number,  I assisted them by placing orders from a library 

vender—giving them the best price available for their new materials—and ensuring that this new library had 



Page 3 of 8 
 
 

new, best-sellers  available for their community. Not my project. But small things channeled them in the correct 

direction of making big things happen.  

In light of the political and social unrest all around us at the end of 2020, the STLS Team began the year but 

discussing and formulating a plan to address Diversity, Equity and Inclusion in the services provided by STLS. My 

contributions to that plan, in relation to my job responsibilities of Youth Services and Interlibrary Loan, made me 

review and evaluate how those concepts and activities could become an integral part of my everyday work. 

Every workshop or training that I offered had some sort of focus in diversity, equity and inclusion. In promoting 

summer programming efforts for our youngest patrons, I presented the idea that DEI can be multi-layered. 

Showcased during that workshop (Tails to Literacy), were various ‘takes’ on the classic flannelboard activity, 

“Little Mouse, Little Mouse are You in the [blank] colored house?”, including one version using different houses 

such as trailers can reflect the diversity in the style of homes. Diversity in training for interlibrary loan is a bit 

more mechanical but always including better, faster ways to search for materials in varying formats such as large 

type helps to ensure that diverse reading needs are not excluded from ILL requests from beyond our system 

borders.  

I am also proud of my colleagues in the Division of Professional Development and Outreach as we determined 

how we would employ DEI concepts in our work as individuals and as a Division. That discussion resulted in two 

keys paths as we worked with our libraries: 1. To focus on various ‘months’ or ‘days’ devoted to diverse 

communities; 2. To focus on materials authored, illustrated by people from a diverse cultures or materials that 

included diverse characters, throughout the year, not just during special months or days. It was decided that 

these two focuses would occur in our newsletters (for me this would be The Flash, periodic newsletter for those 

providing services to youth), social media and other communications, to showcase new materials available to be 

purchased, to have curated, bookshelves available in our Digital Collections. This two-pronged plan presents 

diversity, equity and inclusion as concepts that are a valued part of the world—not relegated to special months 

or days. Once again, small things to achieve the big thing.  

The Pandemic and the resulting shut down of libraries of all types, interrupted basic library services. As libraries 

began to slowly open again, not all services were offered immediately. This was true of interlibrary loan of 

materials from beyond the boundaries of the STLS service region. We outsource interlibrary loan services (ILL) to 

a program administered by the South Central Regional Library Council (SCRLC). The program is entitled: 

Bibliographic and Referral Center (BARC) and the service is delivered by Tompkins Cortland Community College 

(TC3). As TC3 and other NYS academic libraries made significant changes to their catalog and various other 

processes, using BARC would also have some significant changes. Additional training would be necessary for our 

member libraries to once again begin placing ILL requests. Pandemic conditions were relaxed somewhat but 

many still in place. Masks and social distancing were required—making small group training one of the best ways 

to proceed. STLS activated BARC ILL services to our members in June. And, small group training began 

immediately. The trainings consisted of 1-3 staff at each library. Over the course of seven months, (June – 

December), 46% of our members (22 libraries) had received training in using the revised BARC process. Small 

steps to equip libraries with the skills and knowledge to, once again, offer a traditional, yet unique service to 

their communities. Small things channeling in the right direction towards fuller library services.  

Thank you for the opportunity to share with you my view of my activities in 2021. 



Page 4 of 8 
 
 

 Coordinated Outreach 
by Keturah Cappadonia, Outreach Consultant 

Division of Professional Development and Outreach 
 

In 2021, STLS provided outreach services to four county jails and two state correctional facilities. We purchased 

and delivered books to four county jails for use by people who are incarcerated. I coordinated purchases for 

librarians at the two state correctional facilities we serve, providing $5,000 worth of print materials which I 

processed and sent through the STLS delivery service. 

I created a Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice LibGuide with the assistance of Erika Jenns. I promoted 

this guide to our membership through newsletters, emails, and conversations. The LibGuide was viewed 866 

times in 2021 and contains information and resources for providing library services to many underserved 

populations. I worked with the STLS DEI Subcommittee to provide information on the LibGuide about their 

Community Voices Rotating Collection and links to their newsletters. 

I assisted many member libraries with grant writing projects in 2021. I offered a virtual workshop for members 

on grant writing in March, which I recorded and posted online. I publicized numerous grant opportunities 

through email and a new monthly newsletter I began writing. I promoted the ALA Libraries Transform 

Communities: Focus on Small and Rural Libraries funding opportunity and assisted 12-member libraries with 

grant applications. Working with the STLS Coordinated Outreach Services Committee (COSAC), we awarded a 

total of $7,000 in Outreach Mini Grants to 12-member libraries. 

I worked on promoting the Emergency Broadband Benefit program to STLS member libraries and the public 

through emails, newsletters, and social media posts.  

Working with Brian Hildreth, I purchased 170 books for member libraries through the NY State Adult Literacy 

Library Services Program. We distributed the books, nonfiction titles focusing on employment resources and 

agricultural business, to libraries across our service area and added to circulating collections.  

Working with Lorie Brown and Lyndsie Guy, I coordinated visits to member library events, including Summer 

Reading Program Kick Off events at four libraries.  

I worked with members of my department to schedule member workshops through the year and at the Gather 

& Grow Summit. I managed the STLS Audio and Large Print Rotating Collections during November and 

December.  

Additionally, I presented a poster session with Erika Jenns at the ALA Annual Conference, served on the ALA 

Forward Together Resolutions Working Group, served as Vice-President and Acting President of SCRLC, and was 

elected Vice-President of the NYLA Rural Libraries Roundtable. 

Digital Librarianship & Public Relations 

by Erika Jenns, Engagement Consultant 

Division of Professional Development and Outreach 

During 2021, major successes for Erika Jenns included assisting membership with new library card designs, 
expanding access to digital collections, and working with membership to digitize regional materials. 
 
The Arkport Public Library, Montour Falls Memorial Library, Penn Yan Public Library, and Wayland Free Library 
all received brand new library card designs in 2021. 



Page 5 of 8 
 
 

 
Erika enjoys providing this service. Working with member library staff and volunteers to find their vision and 
bring it to life on the cards is a fun process. New card designs allow libraries to showcase their personality, and 
getting a new library card is exciting for community members. In many cases, these new card designs mirror a 
library rebrand and more closely align with updates to library logos, colors, and updated websites. 
 
Access to digital collections, particularly through OverDrive, expanded during 2021. In February, Erika worked 
with RBdigital and OverDrive to end the system-wide subscription to digital magazines from RBdigital, and 
instead, patrons can now access digital magazines through OverDrive. Making more digital resources available 
through a single platform is beneficial for patrons and creates a more seamless user experience. Erika also 
collaborated with colleagues at the Pioneer Library System and the Finger Lakes Library System to implement a 
new feature in OverDrive called the Reciprocal Lending Arrangement. Conversations began in 2021 and the new 
feature was finalized in 2022. This allows patrons with an STLS library card to access materials in the Pioneer and 
Finger Lakes OverDrive collections. This new service should decrease hold times for some titles and broaden 
access for library users to a greater selection of ebook and audiobook content. 
 
Similarly, Erika worked in tandem with Brian Hildreth to add access to two new digital resources: JobNow and 
Peterson’s Test Prep. Access to these two databases is funded by Appalachian Regional Commission federal 
funds, which Brian applied for and secured in 2021. Erika coordinated database selection in 2021 in 
collaboration with Keturah Cappadonia, and she coordinated implementation in early 2022. Erika added links to 
both databases to all member library websites, which ensures that patrons can easily find and access these 
valuable resources. JobNow provides users with a host of services to help in every step of the job search process 
including job searching, resume template, professional resume review, and live interview coaching. Peterson’s 
Test Prep includes full-length practice tests for GED, SAT, ACT, AP, PSAT, GRE, LSAT, MCAT, TOEFL, U.S. 
citizenship, and more. It offers information on undergraduate and graduate programs and tuition and  
scholarship assistance, as well as a resume builder and interviewing advice. 
 
Lastly, Erika worked with the Cuba Circulating Library to submit an application for a Technology and Digitization 
Grant through the South Central Regional Library Council. STLS and Cuba were awarded $8,000 in May 2021 to 
digitize historic newspapers from Cuba and make them freely available and searchable to the public on NYS 
Historic Newspapers, found at nyshistoricnewspapers.org. Erika worked with Tina Dalton, Director of the Cuba 
Circulating Library, and staff at the Northern New York Library Network to digitize 50 reels of microfilmed 
newspapers, spanning from January 1866 to December 1986. These newspapers will be full text searchable and 
easily accessible and provide representation for a part of New York State that is often underrepresented in the 
historical record. This meets goals outlined under “Digitization” in the STLS Social Justice Activities Plan. 

Assistant Director – Head of Information Technology 
by Ken Behn 

Division of Information Technology 

In 2021 IT worked on 1341 Help Desk requests for member libraries and performed 10 operating system patch 
update cycles on ILS servers. Weekly meetings with IT department staff and a tri weekly meeting with the ILS 
staff of MidYork, North Country and Four County took place through much of the year. Frequent webinar style 
training was attended by staff to stay current of recent security risks to STLS and our libraries through Internet 
connected devices. 

IT staff continued to work effectively in a hybrid environment while performing duties inside the office and 
remotely. Preparation for the STLS building renovation project had participation from everyone and a 



Page 6 of 8 
 
 

substantial rearrangement of our data center occurred with only a brief downtime scheduled for early morning 
hours. 

Staff worked with the vendors chosen trough the E-rate process to implement five different projects to improve 
the robustness of WiFi access, Internet access and the refresh the core equipment in the STLS data center. Those 
projects include outside WiFi access with installed cabling and access points, additional network switches, UPS 
battery replacements and updated server and storage infrastructure for web caching and all IT services. 
Improvements through some of those projects are ongoing in 2022. 

Much can be said in the ability for all STLS staff to work in challenging and uncertain times and IT staff continued 
to rise to the occasion while keeping STLS staff connected. 

Individually these are some highlights of IT staff work: 

Pat Beeman -  

• Configured and deployed a Circulation Domain. Connected the Savona and Richburg Multipoint servers 

(both of which were also updated and deployed in 2021) to this domain. It will help with the servicing of 

public and staff computers and can be configured for future libraries as well. 

• Configured and deployed a number of MR46 Cisco wireless access points, which was a needed upgrade 

to library WiFi. The new access points allow for faster connection speeds as well as other, "behind the 

scenes" features. 

Tom Lawrence - 

• Managed interaction with the vendor installing cabling for the outdoor WiFi project and delivered access 

points to libraries as needed for installation. Around half of those installations were performed in 2021 

with the remaining taking place now. We have seen up to a 4X increase in usage of library WiFi services 

as a result of this project. 

• Developed a new computer imaging process and worked with the Procurement Specialist to understand 

all aspects of that process. 

Brianne Liddick - 

• Worked through multiple training processes to learn E-Rate; creating, maintaining and deployed 
computer images and become comfortable working with STLS staff in a remote and in office 
environment. 

• Continually worked with multiple vendors to maintain options for library purchases of desktops and 
laptops despite supply and demand issues and remain within budget.  

Integrated Library System and Cataloging 
by Mandy Fleming, ILS Manager 

Division of Information Technology 
 
Cataloging 
 



Page 7 of 8 
 
 

One of STLS’s core services, and strength’s, is our centralized union catalog; one which our libraries are able to 
easily add items to, but their staff are not required to spend the time and effort to catalog titles themselves.  
That cataloging service is provided by the excellent Integrated Library System (ILS) Specialists:  Kylie, Larissa and 
Daniel.  Each of them spends part of their workday loading, cleaning and creating from scratch - records for all 
circulating items at all libraries within the system.  2021 was an especially busy year with libraries adding unique, 
non-book items such as hotspots, other IT equipment, museum passes, etc.  In 2021 many libraries got back to 
their normal flow of ordering and barcoding items, after the pandemic altered things a bit in 2020.  Our 
turnaround times remained solid, with some busy stretches that saw more than a 2-week turnaround time, to 
multiple weeks at a 3-day turnaround time.  Overall, we met our goal of a 1-week turnaround time average for 
Help Desk submissions of new items.  Items ordered from the vendors that provide MARC records were able to 
be barcoded the same day the records were loaded.   
 
ILS staff have also worked on other important projects throughout 2021.  In the first half of 2021, Kylie and 
Larissa finished a large-scale project of barcoding Arkport’s collection, and training Arkport staff on item 
maintenance, in preparation for automating in 2021.  Kylie managed ILS training schedules for ILS staff, which 
allowed us to provide numerous one-on-one and group training opportunities to our libraries.  This was 
especially important with so many new library directors coming to STLS in 2021.  It was a joy to provide in-
person training again, though we have also continued to provide training online, based on trainee preference.  
Larissa worked on a number of custom BLUECloud Analytics (BCA) reports, and dossiers (combination of reports) 
- many requested by libraries and made available to everyone in BCA, in order to help library staff better report 
library data.  Daniel worked with multiple book/AV vendors to further improve MARC record delivery – saving 
member library and ILS staff time. The Cataloging Advisory Committee worked in 2021 to address outdated 
terms in the 650s (subject headings) and made a number of additions to records, in order to include more 
inclusive language and provide a more inclusive online catalog to our patrons. 
   
Circulation 
 
In 2021, I worked on a number of projects to make configuration of the ILS reflect the member library services 
that are evolving to become more equitable and inclusive of all members of our STLS community.  I worked on a 
project to encourage member libraries to go permanently fine free; I shared data and feedback from fine free 
libraries at numerous meetings and reached out directly to non-fine free directors to chat with them about the 
benefits.  Currently, all STLS libraries are temporarily fine free and all but 10 have decided to go permanently 
fine free.  I have also encouraged libraries to consider forgiving past overdue bills in bulk, after seeing the 
positive press coverage from other library systems, such as NYPL, that have done so.  So far, our largest libraries 
(Corning in 2021 and CCLD in 2022) have done so, as well as a few of our smaller and medium-sized libraries. 
This allows hundreds of patrons to once again use library services without the stigma and frustration of past 
overdue bills.  I have also been working on wiping the slate clean for a large number of inactive users, by 
removing those records.  In the first round of purging inactive patrons, I removed 141,844 inactive patron 
records.  This simplifies the registration process, if these patrons come in for a new card, and makes our patron 
database much cleaner and more reflective of the patrons that are actively using our services.  In 2021, I worked 
closely with the Director’s Advisory Council (DAC) Circulation Committee in order to streamline system-wide 
circulation procedures.  Finally, in 2021 I trained Cathy, Terry and JoAnn in Arkport to learn how to use 
WorkFlows as an automated library – helping a library to automate, and fully utilize the efficiency provided by 
our ILS, is always a highlight of the year!   
 
E-Rate 
 



Page 8 of 8 
 
 

2021 was also a very busy year for E-rate filing.  In the beginning of the year we filed 13 Form 470s – Description 
of Services Requested and Certification Form (up from 4 in 2020), and 17 Form 471s – Services Ordered and 
Certification Form (up from 10 in 2020) – possibly an STLS record.  New services in 2021 included Arkport and 
Odessa monthly internet access and a number of equipment upgrade projects including Web Caching, Meraki 
Network Upgrades, APC Battery Replacements, and Meraki WAPs and Network Cabling - in order to provide 
exterior wireless access points for each member library.  Brianne (the new staff member that will be responsible 
for E-rate filing going forward) joined STLS in late 2021, and Ken and I began the process of training her to 
understand the program, work with service providers and file program forms.  Over the course of 2021, I filed 
Billed Entity Application Reimbursement Forms (BEARS) for, and STLS received $303,029.04 in USAC 
reimbursements – for Category 1 monthly internet services and Category 2 equipment ($82,585.39 in March, 
$30,690.00 in June, $82,490.27 in September, and $107,263.38 in October).   
 
 


	Doc. #22-33_Agenda - April 2022 Board Meeting - STLS -4.19.2022
	Doc. #22-34_Meeting Minutes - March 2022 Board Meeting - STLS
	Doc. #22-35_Treasurer's Report - March 2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-36_Financial Clerk's Report - March 2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-37_Profit-Loss Statement to Budget - March 2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-38_First Quarter Claims Auditor Report - STLS - 2022
	Doc. #22-39_End of Year 2021_Profit-Loss Budget Statement - December 31, 2021
	Doc. #22-40_Personnel and Policies Committee Meeting Minutes - April 2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-41_Draft_Finance Policy -  4.19.2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-42_Draft_Investment Policy - 4.19.2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-43_Draft_Travel, Working Remotely and Conference Policy 4.3.2018
	Doc. #22-44_Draft - Disaster Preparedness Policy - 4.19.2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-45_Finance and Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes - April 2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-46_2021 Library System Annual Report to the State Education Department - STLS
	Doc. #22-47_PR Committee Meeting Minutes - Southern Tier Library System - March 2022
	Doc. #22-48_Foundation for Southern Tier Libraries Meeting Minutes - April 2022
	Doc. #22-49_Expenditure Approvals - Monthly Unpaid Bills Detail - April 2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-50_Receipt Approvals - Monthly Deposit Summary - April 2022 - STLS
	Doc. #22-51_Monthly System Management Team Reports - April 2022 - STLS

